
1 
 

 For “in-person” meetings, persons who are not on the agenda but wish to 
address the governing body must register to speak at least 15 minutes prior to 
the start of the meeting.  For Zoom meetings, the Mayor will canvas attendees 
for those wishing to speak.  Time limits will be imposed.  Written comments 

and/or questions to be addressed at the meeting, must be submitted to 
jimauxer@yahoo.com 24 hours before the meeting.  Requests for copies of 

documents related to agenda items must be made in writing at least 24 hours 
in advance of the meeting, not during the meeting.  NOTE:  Council members 
are elected to represent citizens of the Corporation of Shepherdstown, please 
contact them regarding any questions or comments you may have about the 

agenda items.  This Council follows Robert’s Rules of Order (Revised).    
 

THE MEETING IS STREAMED ON THE TOWN’S FACEBOOK PAGE  
“SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA” 

  
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, April 11, 2023 
6:30 p.m. 

LOCATION: TOWN HALL  
104 NORTH KING STREET 

MASK WEARING IS OPTIONAL 
 
 

1. Call to order    
 

2. Approval of Town Council Meeting Minutes of March 14, 21 and 29, 2023  

    

    3.   Public Comment Period    

           a.  Persons who have registered to address Town Council.    
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
    4.  Public Hearings  

a. Second Reading Of An Ordinance Re-Enacting And Further Clarifying 
Section 9-207 Of Chapter 2 Of Title 9 Of The Code Of Shepherdstown, 
West Virginia, To Prohibit Driveways That Cross Public Sidewalks 

 

    5.  Visitors  

a. Dr. Scott Barton and Sonya Sholley - Shepherd University East Loop and 
Gateway Projects  

b. Brad Clare – Requesting permission to publish a geocaching earthcache at 
James Rumsey Park 

c. Peter Smith- Rotary Club of Shepherdstown – July 4 Parade  

mailto:jimauxer@yahoo.com


2 
 

d. Jim Gatz – reappointment to the Jefferson County Development Authority as 
Shepherdstown’s representative 

e. Melissa Jackson – American Foundation for Suicide Prevention – AFSP Out 
of the Darkness – September 9, 2023 

 
 

6.  Unfinished Business 
       a.  Market House update 
       b.  Town Administrator update 

     
7.  Old Business 
 a.  Update of website 
 
8.  New Business  

 a.  Shepherd University Law Enforcement Mutual Assistance Agreement 

 b. Special Town Council Meeting- April 18 re:  Laying of the Levy  

 

9. Reports of Committees    

A. Finance Committee    

1. No meeting in March 2023 
2. Recommendations:  NONE 
3. Review and approval of Corporation Financials 

 
B. Parking Committee    

1. No meeting in March 2023 
2. Recommendations: NONE    

 
         C. Police Committee    

1. No meeting in March 2023 
2. Recommendations: NONE   
3. New police patches 

        

 D. Public Works Committee    

1. Meeting minutes of March 3, 2023 – not available 
2. Recommendations:  NONE 

   
 

 E. Parks and Recreation Committee    

1. Meeting minutes of March 2023 – not available 
2. Recommendations:  NONE 

 

 



3 
 

 
F. Grants Committee 
 

1. Next meeting April 11, 2023  
2. Recommendations: NONE  

 
G.  Age Friendly Committee 
 1.  Meeting minutes of March 2023 – not available 
 2.  Recommendations:  NONE 
 
H. Personnel Committee 
 1.  Meeting minutes of March 2023 
 2.  Recommendations: NONE 

 
    
  10. Report of Commissions and Boards    

A. Tree Commission    

1. No meeting in March 2023 
2. Recommendations: NONE    
    

B.  Water and Sanitary Board    

1. Meeting minutes of March 23, 2023 
                2. Recommendations:   NONE 
  

C. Historic Landmarks Commission    

1.  Meeting minutes of April 2023 – not available      
2. Recommendations:  NONE     

 D. Planning Commission  
 

1.  Meeting minutes of March 2023 – not available 
2.  Recommendations: NONE  
 

E.  Board of Appeals 
 
 

11.  Mayor’s Report 
 



DRAFT MINUTES 
CORPORATION OF SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA 

WATER & SANITARY BOARDS 
March 23, 2023 

ATTENDEES: Water Board – J. Auxer (Mayor), J. Ford, M. Godfrey, S. Kemnitzer (Chair), S. Knuppel, C. 
Stroech 

 Sanitary Board – J. Auxer (Chair), H. Heyser, R. Keller  
 Town Staff – B. Bennett, C. Coe, K. Shipley, F. Welch 
 Visitors:  G. Welter 

1. CALL TO ORDER.   
The Water and Sanitary Boards meeting was called to order by J. Auxer at 1:00 p.m. 

2. MINUTES FROM PRIOR MEETING.   
The proposed minutes of the February 23, 2023, regular meeting were reviewed and approved as 
submitted. 

3.  VISITORS.  
No visitor comments. 

4. FINANCES.    

4.a FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - ENCLOSURE.   
 S. Kemnitzer submitted questions before the meeting and these were addressed at this time: 

 Q1 - Explanation of sometimes large discrepancies in the Budget vs Actual report. 

 F. Welch explained that some items are budgeted on a monthly basis and other items have their entire 
annual budget value budgeted in only 1 or 2 months.  It was suggested that, whenever possible, the 
items in the 23/24 budget be budgeted in a monthly fashion.  B. Bennett agreed. 

 Q2 - Based on January financial reports: a) variations from budget; b) trends in revenues and 
expenses; c) should the budget be revised; d) how does this information inform the 23/24 budget? 

 F. Welch addressed a variation in expenditures for insurance and stated that he would have to research 
the cause.  J. Auxer stated that he thought items a, b and d could be addressed during the upcoming 
budget process meetings. 

 Re item c, it was suggested that the process of making formal budget adjustments be understood so 
that periodic adjustments can be made during the 23/24 fiscal year.  B. Bennett agreed. 

 Q3 - What is the plan for preparing the 23/24 budget? 

 J. Auxer presented several dates when D. Decker and D. Sweeney would be available to attend 
budgeting meetings.  After some discussion it was decided to hold the Water budget meeting on April 
25 at 1PM and the Sewer budget meeting on May 3 at 1PM. 

 Q4 - Please give us a progress report on the expenditures for the water plant improvement project and 
the water distribution project. 

 Progress report for water plant improvement project was prepared but not included in the meeting 
packet.  Copies were made and distributed at the meeting.  Progress report for the water distribution 
project was not yet available. 

Page  of 1 3



ACTION ITEM:  J. EKSTROM TO PREPARE PROGRESS REPORT FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION 
PROJECT FOR NEXT MONTH’S MEETING. 

4.b PSC REPORTS - 6-30-2022 - AVAILABLE AT MEETING.   
No additional information presented. 

4.c FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - DECKER & CO.   
No additional information presented. 

5. FLOW AND QUALITY REPORTS.   

5.a WATER REPORTS.   
C. Coe reported all readings have been good and that quarterly samples will be done soon. 

5.b. SEWER REPORTS. 
! "#!$%&'()* reported that everything is in good order.  

! "#!$%&'()* reported that he has received an email that said our new press is scheduled for delivery to 
the port of Baltimore on 3/27 and hopefully will be delivered to us by the 2nd week of April. 

! "#!$%&'()* reported on the status of the Toll House Woods development:  wet well is set, 16 manholes 
finished and 2644’ of 8” sewer line has been installed.  S. Kemnitzer stated that we need to 
communicate to the County our concerns about preservation of the Town Run water supply.  M. 
Godfrey suggested that we send a copy of the State approval of Town Run as our secondary water 
source. 

ACTION ITEM:  J. AUXER TO SEND A COPY OF THE STATE APPROVAL OF TOWN RUN AS OUR 
SECONDARY WATER SOURCE TO THE COUNTY DEPARTMENT RESPONSIBLE FOR 
OVERSIGHT OF THE TOLL HOUSE WOODS DEVELOPMENT. 

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS.   

6.a WATER PLANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT. 
 F. Welch stated that we are still waiting on drives and that the raw water pumps are still several weeks 

out.  He also reported that there is a problem with a sludge pump and that a vendor representative is 
scheduled to come and address the problem.  

6.b UPDATE ON WATER DISTRIBUTION PROJECT. 
 No report.  

7. NEW BUSINESS.   

7.a WATER TANK CLEANING AND ANODE REPLACEMENT. 
F. Welch presented a proposal from Liquid Engineering to perform the 5-year cleaning of the tanks for 
$9840.  Anode replacement would also be done at $475/hour. 

ACTION ITEM:  S. KNUPPEL MOVED, M. GODFREY SECONDED, THAT THE LIQUID 
ENGINEERING PROPOSAL BE ACCEPTED.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY WITH NO 
FURTHER DISCUSSION. 

7.b FINANCIAL TRAINING. 
J. Auxer stated that this would be done during the budget process meetings. 

7.c EPA DRINKING WATER MANAGEMENT BRANCH - PARTNERING WITH SMALL WATER 
UTILITIES TO STUDY LEAD SERVICE LINE ISSUES. 
S. Kemnitzer asked if we want to participate in this study. 

Page  of 2 3



C. Coe stated that we need to get our inventory done first.  S. Kemnitzer suggested that the research 
project might help with the inventory.  S. Knuppel and M. Godfrey both expressed concerns that the 
double effort and/or confusion might result. 

G. Welter stated that one thing the research project should be used for is to do lab testing on any pipe 
that is removed during this process. 

ACTION ITEM:  S. KEMNITZER TO CONTINUE COMMUNICATION WITH THE EPA ABOUT 
POSSIBLE PARTICIPATION IN THEIR LEAD SERVICE LINE RESEARCH PROJECT. 

8. OLD BUSINESS.   

8.a HYDRANT REPORT - ENCLOSURE IN PACKET. 
M. Godfrey asked if moving hydrants affects homeowner insurance.  C. Coe stated that we are not 
moving any hydrants.  One is being removed but there is another hydrant quite close. 

8.b ACTION ITEMS:  MAYOR AUXER TO WORK WITH D. FOGEL TO IMPROVE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS. 
J. Auxer stated that this effort is ongoing.  M. Godfrey volunteered to try to create an example of a profit 
and loss trend report. 

ACTION ITEM:  M,. GODFREY TO CREATE AN EXAMPLE OF A PROFIT AND LOSS TREND 
REPORT. 

8.c ACTION ITEMS:  J. EKSTROM TO PROVIDE 1-PAGE DESCRIPTION OF GIS WORK. 
Report was included in the packet.  M. Godfrey asked if the Ghosh costs are already priced into the 
project.  C. Coe verified that they are. 

8.d PFAS - TESTING. 
Nothing new to report. 

9. MAYOR’S REPORT.   
Nothing to report.   

10. NEXT MEETING DATE.  
J. Auxer asked if we should cancel the April meeting since we are having 2 budget meetings (Water 
and Sewer meeting separately).  There was general agreement.  M. Godfrey requested that the 
financial information that would normally be contained in the meeting packet be emailed even though 
there would be no meeting. 

11. SUMMARIZE ACTION ITEMS FROM THIS MEETING. 

4.a:  J. Ekstrom to prepare progress report for water distribution project for next meeting. 

5.b:  J. Auxer to send a copy of the State approval of Town Run as our secondary water source to the 
County Department responsible for oversight of the Toll House Woods development. 

7.c:  S. Kemnitzer to continue communication with the EPA about possible participation in their lead 
service line research project. 

8.b:  M. Godfrey to create an example of a profit and loss trend report. 

12. DRAFT AGENDA FOR NEXT MEETING. 

13. ADJOURNMENT.  J. Auxer adjourned the meeting at 2:10 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted: J. Ford

Page  of 3 3



From: Melissa McCabe
To: Amy Boyd
Subject: Re: Event Request Form-AFSP
Date: Tuesday, March 28, 2023 4:59:54 PM

mailto:melissamccabe1127@gmail.com
mailto:clerk@shepherdstown.us








On Tue, Mar 28, 2023 at 2:59 PM Amy Boyd <clerk@shepherdstown.us> wrote:

There’s no attachment.

 

Thanks,

 

Amy L. Boyd, Town Clerk

Corporation of Shepherdstown

104 North King Street

P.O. Box 248

Shepherdstown, WV 25443

Office: 304-876-2398

Website: www.shepherdstown.us

 

From: Melissa McCabe <melissamccabe1127@gmail.com> 

mailto:clerk@shepherdstown.us
https://www.google.com/maps/search/104+North+King+Street?entry=gmail&source=g
http://www.shepherdstown.us/
mailto:melissamccabe1127@gmail.com


Sent: Sunday, March 26, 2023 6:05 PM
To: Amy Boyd <clerk@shepherdstown.us>
Subject: Event Request Form-AFSP

 

Please find the attached event request form. We are a nonprofit organization American
Foundation for Suicide Prevention. We host a community walk called Out Of The Darkness
Fight for suicide prevention. Once we have a date confirmed we are going to work with the
college and local businesses to get the community involved. Thank you, 

Melissa Jackson

240-729-5698

mailto:clerk@shepherdstown.us


Total
ASSETS
   Current Assets
      Bank Accounts
         101C Coal Severance Checking 6208 22,645.44  

      Total Bank Accounts $                                                               22,645.44  
      Other Current Assets
         202C Accrued Receivables Coal 0.00  

      Total Other Current Assets $                                                                        0.00  
   Total Current Assets $                                                               22,645.44  
TOTAL ASSETS $                                                               22,645.44  
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
   Liabilities
      Current Liabilities
         Other Current Liabilities
            290.50 Restricted for Equipment 1,000.00  

         Total Other Current Liabilities $                                                                 1,000.00  
      Total Current Liabilities $                                                                 1,000.00  
   Total Liabilities $                                                                 1,000.00  
   Equity
      390 Retained Earnings Coal 18,463.83  

      Retained Earnings
      Net Income 3,181.61  

   Total Equity $                                                               21,645.44  
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $                                                               22,645.44  

Note
These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, and no assurance 
is provided on them.

Corporation of Shepherdstown
Coal Severance Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2023



Feb-23 YTD
Income
   310 Coal Severance Tax 0.00  3,785.15  

   Uncategorized Income 0.00  50.00  

Total Income $                          0.00  $                   3,835.15  
Gross Profit $                          0.00  $                   3,835.15  
Expenses
Total Expenses 1,000.00  1,000.00  

Net Operating Income -$                 1,000.00  $                   2,835.15  
Other Income
   380C Restricted Fund Interest Coal 48.31  346.46  

Total Other Income $                        48.31  $                      346.46  
Net Other Income $                        48.31  $                      346.46  
Net Income -$                    951.69  $                   3,181.61  

Corporation of Shepherdstown
Coal Severance Profit and Loss

July - February, 2023

Note
These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, and 
no assurance is provided on them.



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:50 AM GMT-04:00   1/5

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

110 Lighting 2728 4,663.88

700.301 Police Court Attorney 462.25

800.42 Sanitation Advertising 50.00

GENERAL FUNDS BANKING

101.011 General Operating Funds 6209 3,467,888.13

Reserved Portion 6209 -3,851,136.03

Restricted Portion 6209 -53,699.93

Total 101.011 General Operating Funds 6209 -436,947.83

101.040 DR/CR Revenue Checking 8818 377,860.23

101.09 PoliceDR/CR Acct-all 6798 217,790.46

101.50 Payroll Checking 0471 85,495.80

102 Global (was WSG) 6039 1,620,460.67

Total GENERAL FUNDS BANKING 1,864,659.33

RESERVED FUNDS BANKING 6209

101.02 Video Lottery NT (JSB)

VL NT Cap-Infrastructure-ALL 835,967.90

VL NT-Cap. Public Works Equip 6,568.00

VL NT-Capital-Police Equip. 35,582.47

VL NT-Operating Cash 2,213,606.98

VL NT-Sidewalks 40,565.20

Total 101.02 Video Lottery NT (JSB) 3,132,290.55

101.07 Contingency Fund 115,000.00

Video Lottery LVL- Operating 29,747.61

Total RESERVED FUNDS BANKING 6209 3,277,038.16

101.031 Grants Funds-Other Grants 14,900.00

101.037 JC Bike Path Project Funds 2,731.48

101.039 Oil and Gas Tax 36,068.45

103 Customer Deposit Accounts 3194 121,491.83

106.01 Petty Cash Till-Town Hall 100.00

106.02 Petty Cash Till-Police Dept. 100.00

106.03 Change Fund-Billing Clerk 200.00

VL-NT-Cap.-Tobacco Whs Impr. 86,132.12



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:50 AM GMT-04:00   2/5

TOTAL

VL-Table Games-All 488,530.95

RESTRICTED FUNDS BANKING

105 Police Dept. Equip. Fund (JSB) 4986 11,337.22

Parks & Recreation Hotel/Motel 5985 66,336.42

Total RESTRICTED FUNDS BANKING 77,673.64

Special Fund

ARPA 8097 434,777.23

Total Special Fund 434,777.23

Undeposited Funds 1,220.23

Total Bank Accounts $6,410,799.55

Accounts Receivable

General Funds A/R

108 Other Accrued Receivables

108.01 NSF Check Receivables -308.33

Total 108 Other Accrued Receivables -308.33

109 Accrued Taxes Receivable

109.01 Accr. Rec.-All Other Revenues 87,913.62

109.02 Accru Rec.-W/S Utility Tax-All 2,564.24

109.03 Deferred Property Taxes Rec. 13,510.72

Total 109 Accrued Taxes Receivable 103,988.58

111 Garbage Billing 0.00

111.01 Garbage Billing-All 18,174.00

111.02 Recycling Billing-All 3,740.54

111.03 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -2,000.00

Total 111 Garbage Billing 19,914.54

Total General Funds A/R 123,594.79

Total Accounts Receivable $123,594.79

Other Current Assets

112.011 Tobacco Warehouse 5,261.00

Due from Coal Severance 117.69

Other Current Assets

112.01 Prepaid Expenses 81,400.50

112.02 Supplies & Materials Inventory 5,194.47

112.07 Workers Comp Deposit 4,551.48

Total Other Current Assets 91,146.45

Total Other Current Assets $96,525.14

Total Current Assets $6,630,919.48



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:50 AM GMT-04:00   3/5

TOTAL

Fixed Assets

General Fixed Assets (Gov-Wide)

Accumulated Depr.

131.10 Accum. Depr.-Buildings -1,041,016.79

132.10 Accum. Depr.-Other Improvements -24,296.75

133.10 Accum. Depr.-Equipment -808,280.38

136.10 Accum Depr-Infrastructure -1,412,953.51

Total Accumulated Depr. -3,286,547.43

Construction in Progress

136.03 CIP-Infrastructure 5,503.02

Total Construction in Progress 5,503.02

Fixed Assets

130 Fixed Assets-Land 894,254.11

131 Fixed Assets-Buildings 3,214,973.79

132 Fixed Assets-Other Impr. 44,605.00

133 Fixed Assets-Equipment 1,308,037.93

136 Fixed Assets-Infrastructure 3,262,661.09

Total Fixed Assets 8,724,531.92

Total General Fixed Assets (Gov-Wide) 5,443,487.51

Total Fixed Assets $5,443,487.51

TOTAL ASSETS $12,074,406.99

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

General Funds A/P

201 Accounts Payable, Vendor 2,469.00

Total General Funds A/P 2,469.00

Total Accounts Payable $2,469.00

Credit Cards

213 Purchase Card Payable 62,875.48

Credit Cards Payable 97.96



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:50 AM GMT-04:00   4/5

TOTAL

Total Credit Cards $62,973.44

Other Current Liabilities

140.01 DO-RHBT Payments Subsequer -24,060.26

140.02 DO - Change in Proportionate -16,430.00

2104 PEIA Payable 1,452.00

250.10 Net OPEB Liability 262,044.00

260 Accrued Compensated Absences 45,929.73

280.10 DI-Different Expected/Actual I 3,813.00

280.20 DI-Difference Proj/Actual Earn 4,911.00

280.30 DI-Changes/Differences Prop. S 15,979.00

280.40 DI - Changes in Assuptions 25,685.00

290.50 Restricted for Equipment 3,731.48

292.20 PPA-Beginning OPEB Liability -276,168.79

292.30 PPA-2017 RHBT Payment -58,946.76

292.40 PPA-Beginning Net OPEB Obligati 313,932.00

Child Support 475.38

Due to/from Sewer -250,950.85

Due to/from Water 129,629.09

Garnishments 0.02

Gen Fund Other Current Liab.

220 Accrued Wages & Taxes Payable 2,671.45

235 Customer Dep Funds/Int Payable 0.00

Customer Deposit Funds Payable 20,591.55

Customer Deposit Interest Payable 3,325.55

Total 235 Customer Dep Funds/Int Payable 23,917.10

240 Other Current Liabilities

Appeal Bonds-Police court -100.00

Board of Appeals Fee Bond 300.00

Total 240 Other Current Liabilities 200.00

Total Gen Fund Other Current Liab. 26,788.55

Payroll Liabilities 7,406.72

VALIC Retirement Payable 14,506.78

Total Other Current Liabilities $229,727.09

Total Current Liabilities $295,169.53

Total Liabilities $295,169.53

Equity

290 Investment in Gen. Fixed Assets 5,466,470.38

Fund Balance 4,680,537.16

Retained Earnings 1,342,273.89



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:50 AM GMT-04:00   5/5

TOTAL

Net Income 289,956.03

Total Equity $11,779,237.46

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $12,074,406.99

Note
These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, and no assurance is provided on 
them.



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Budget vs. Actuals: New Budget draft - FY23 P&L

July 2022 - February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   1/9

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

Income

308 Hotel Occupancy Tax 79,937.47 70,000.00 9,937.47

Court Fee Revenues -1,230.00 -1,230.00

320 Fines,Fees and Court Costs 155.00 155.00

320.01 Bond Deposits 36,776.06 35,352.00 1,424.06

320.03 Fingerprints 70.00 70.00 0.00

320.05 Technology Fee 2,100.00 -2,100.00

320.10 DR/CR Chargebacks-temp acct -312.56 -312.56

Total 320 Fines,Fees and Court Costs 36,688.50 37,522.00 -833.50

389 Accident Reports 210.00 174.96 35.04

Total Court Fee Revenues 35,668.50 37,696.96 -2,028.46

Gaming Income-Table Games

376.00 Gaming Income-Table Games 111,174.97 83,090.00 28,084.97

Total Gaming Income-Table Games 111,174.97 83,090.00 28,084.97

License & Permit Revenue 5,250.00 -5,250.00

325 Business Licenses 11,774.00 17,496.00 -5,722.00

Total License & Permit Revenue 11,774.00 22,746.00 -10,972.00

Other Revenues

380 Checking Interest 0.00 0.00

380.01 General Fund Interest 103,515.35 70,000.00 33,515.35

380.02 Restricted Fund Interest 6,177.00 1,236.32 4,940.68

380.03 Other Interest 2,881.76 -2,881.76

Total 380 Checking Interest 109,692.35 74,118.08 35,574.27

381 Reimbursements 1,242.11 1,750.00 -507.89

382 Refunds & Rebates 11,159.37 8,608.00 2,551.37

399 Miscellaneous Income 46.00 46.00

399.05 Refunds & Reimbursements -2,456.31 104.96 -2,561.27

399.17 Insurance Reimb. - Library -2,499.95 -2,499.95

399.20 Other Misc. Revenues 25.00 25.00

399.21 Banner Hanging Fee 146.64 -146.64

399.46 COVID REIMBURSEMENT 5,757.36 5,757.36

Total 399 Miscellaneous Income 872.10 251.60 620.50

Total Other Revenues 122,965.93 84,727.68 38,238.25

Other Tax Revenues

303 Gas & Oil Severance 8,903.40 8,903.40 0.00

304 Utility Tax

304.01 Town Utility Tax-Utility Co. 23,848.41 7,320.00 16,528.41

304.02 Town Utility Tax-Water/Sewer 17,483.24 34,320.00 -16,836.76

Total 304 Utility Tax 41,331.65 41,640.00 -308.35

305 Business & Occupation Tax 63,329.10 43,710.00 19,619.10

306 Wine/Liquor/Private Club Tax 93,704.02 75,328.00 18,376.02



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Budget vs. Actuals: New Budget draft - FY23 P&L

July 2022 - February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   2/9

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

307 Animal Control Tax 232.50 210.00 22.50

314 Muni Sales & Use Tax 268,213.38 355,000.00 -86,786.62

328 Franchise Fee/Pole Tax 6,030.36 7,000.00 -969.64

330 IRP Truck Fees 6,041.18 5,600.00 441.18

Total Other Tax Revenues 487,785.59 537,391.40 -49,605.81

Parking Fee Revenue 22,178.05 22,178.05

321 Parking Tickets/includes boots 27,480.68 9,448.00 18,032.68

342 Parking Meter Revenues

342.10 Parking Meter Income 42,532.03 31,496.00 11,036.03

342.30 Parking Meter-Passport 27,962.73 17,500.00 10,462.73

Total 342 Parking Meter Revenues 70,494.76 48,996.00 21,498.76

343 Parking Permit Revenue 5,190.00 8,752.00 -3,562.00

Total Parking Fee Revenue 125,343.49 67,196.00 58,147.49

Planning Commission Revenue

326 Building Permits 2,900.00 5,000.00 -2,100.00

353 BOA Fee (Book Fee here-no A/P) 140.00 -140.00

Total Planning Commission Revenue 2,900.00 5,140.00 -2,240.00

Property Tax Revenue 199,740.99 95,224.00 104,516.99

Refuse Collections Revenue

350 Refuse Collection

350.10 Refuse Revenue-All 115,126.54 111,300.00 3,826.54

350.20 Recycling Revenue-All 21,763.33 21,700.00 63.33

Total 350 Refuse Collection 136,889.87 133,000.00 3,889.87

Special Recycling Revenue

350.05 Refuse Coll.- Special Pickup 295.00 1,050.00 -755.00

Total Special Recycling Revenue 295.00 1,050.00 -755.00

Total Refuse Collections Revenue 137,184.87 134,050.00 3,134.87

Rents Revenue

345.00 Rent-Water & Sewer Depts. 28,800.00 30,240.00 -1,440.00

345.01 Rent-Shepherdstown Library 1.00 -1.00

345.03 Rent-% of asset cost reimb-W/S 1.00 -1.00

345.04 Rumsey Park Rent (Restr.-Parks) 210.00 -210.00

Total Rents Revenue 28,800.00 30,452.00 -1,652.00

Uncategorized Income 0.00 0.00

Video Lottery Proceeds Revenue 19.63 19.63

397.00 Racetrack Video Lottery 148,391.86 136,016.00 12,375.86

397.02 New Limited VL Terminals 4,412.88 4,550.00 -137.12

397.05 VL Garbage Truck Repay 27,720.00 -27,720.00

Total Video Lottery Proceeds Revenue 152,824.37 168,286.00 -15,461.63

Total Income $1,496,100.18 $1,336,000.04 $160,100.14

GROSS PROFIT $1,496,100.18 $1,336,000.04 $160,100.14



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Budget vs. Actuals: New Budget draft - FY23 P&L

July 2022 - February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   3/9

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

Expenses

440.30 City Hall Legal Fees 9,958.53 8,400.00 1,558.53

455.01 Sidewalk Assistance Housing 367.00 367.00

700.302 Police Court Judge 1,200.00 1,480.00 -280.00

700.305 Misc. Contractual 2,931.81 2,931.81

916 Library - Building Repairs 10,359.05 14,000.00 -3,640.95

Arts, Humanities, Library

906.01 A/H/L  Tax %  Paid Out 186.71 186.71

Total Arts, Humanities, Library 186.71 186.71

City Hall Accounting/Audit

440.21 City Hall Accounting Services 30,487.01 5,328.00 25,159.01

Total City Hall Accounting/Audit 30,487.01 5,328.00 25,159.01

City Hall Bldg/Equip Expenses

440.16 Town Hall Bldg Repair/Maint 187.59 1,400.00 -1,212.41

440.27 City Hall Communications 3,325.08 4,900.00 -1,574.92

440.33 City Hall Rent 640.00 -640.00

440.57 City Hall Equip Repairs/Maint 4,222.58 1,400.00 2,822.58

440.59 City Hall Equipment Purchase 10,500.00 -10,500.00

Total City Hall Bldg/Equip Expenses 7,735.25 18,840.00 -11,104.75

City Hall Insurance

440.26 City Hall Insurance Bonds 283.34 140.00 143.34

440.31 City Hall Commercial Insurance 10,790.40 15,400.00 -4,609.60

Total City Hall Insurance 11,073.74 15,540.00 -4,466.26

City Hall Other Expenses 3.00 3.00

440.01 City Hall-Council Training 140.00 -140.00

440.10 City Hall Advertising 1,032.80 70.00 962.80

440.12 City Hall Printing 70.00 -70.00

440.18 Postage 1,210.51 350.00 860.51

440.19 Postage Machine Rental 490.00 -490.00

440.22 City Hall Dues/Memberships 6,115.99 700.00 5,415.99

440.29 City Hall Contracted Services 13,972.72 14,184.00 -211.28

440.32 City Hall Bank Charges 210.00 -210.00

440.35 Credit Card Fees 61.23 4,550.00 -4,488.77

440.411 City Hall Supplies & Materials 353.19 3,500.00 -3,146.81

440.50 City Hall Svc/Finance Charges 212.50 212.50

Total City Hall Other Expenses 22,961.94 24,264.00 -1,302.06

City Hall Utilities

440.15 City Hall Electric 2,166.12 2,100.00 66.12

440.27 City Hall Communications (deleted) 14.37 14.37

440.28 City Hall Water/Sewer/Trash 3,266.79 2,136.00 1,130.79

Total City Hall Utilities 5,447.28 4,236.00 1,211.28

City Hall Video Lottery Expense



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Budget vs. Actuals: New Budget draft - FY23 P&L

July 2022 - February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   4/9

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

440.60 Video Lottery Funds Expenses 400.00 400.00

Donation-Shep Fire Department 6,000.00 6,000.00

Total 440.60 Video Lottery Funds Expenses 6,400.00 6,400.00

Total City Hall Video Lottery Expense 6,400.00 6,400.00

City Hall-Employee Salary/Fring

440.03 City Hall Wages 58,107.26 46,920.00 11,187.26

440.04 City Hall ER FICA 4,322.67 4,550.00 -227.33

440.051 City Hall ER Hlth/Life 7,716.62 9,240.00 -1,523.38

440.06 City Hall ER Annuity Contrib. 3,897.51 4,900.00 -1,002.49

440.07 City Hall ER Workers Comp 1,355.28 1,050.00 305.28

440.09 City Hall Unemployment Tax Exp 1,365.17 1,365.17

Employee Payroll & ER Taxes 128.00 -128.00

Total City Hall-Employee Salary/Fring 76,764.51 66,788.00 9,976.51

General Fund Donations

440.52 City Hall General Donations 50.00 210.00 -160.00

440.54 Shep. Public Library Donations 15,300.00 14,400.00 900.00

Total General Fund Donations 15,350.00 14,610.00 740.00

Magistrate Services 840.00 1,280.00 -440.00

Parks Equipment & Supplies

900.41 Parks Materials & Supplies 2,919.85 3,328.00 -408.15

900.58 Parks Equipment 53,716.83 13,328.00 40,388.83

Total Parks Equipment & Supplies 56,636.68 16,656.00 39,980.68

Parks Maintenance

900.15 Parks Maintanance 1,136.68 3,328.00 -2,191.32

900.15 Parks Maintanance (deleted) 874.00 874.00

900.31 Parks Commercial Insurance 1,269.44 560.00 709.44

Total Parks Maintenance 3,280.12 3,888.00 -607.88

Parks Salaries & Fringe

900.03 Parks Gross Payroll 1,572.57 6,800.00 -5,227.43

900.04 Parks ER FICA 119.61 700.00 -580.39

900.05 Parks ER Health/Life 1,446.80 700.00 746.80

900.05 Parks ER Health/Life (deleted) 220.23 220.23

900.06 Parks ER Annuity Contrib. 58.48 140.00 -81.52

900.07 Parks ER Workers Comp 246.40 140.00 106.40

Total Parks Salaries & Fringe 3,664.09 8,480.00 -4,815.91

900.09 Parks Unemployment Tax Exp 210.00 -210.00

Parks Utilities 49,000.00 -49,000.00

900.18 Parks Electric 2,050.95 486.64 1,564.31

Total Parks Utilities 2,050.95 49,486.64 -47,435.69

Parks Vehicle Expenses

900.43 Parks Gas/Fuel 467.13 3,416.00 -2,948.87



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Budget vs. Actuals: New Budget draft - FY23 P&L

July 2022 - February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   5/9

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

Total Parks Vehicle Expenses 467.13 3,416.00 -2,948.87

Planning Commission Expenses

440.802 Zoning Office FT Wages/Salary 48,125.61 43,520.00 4,605.61

440.804 Zoning Officer ER FICA 3,685.82 3,536.00 149.82

440.806 Zoning Office ER Annuity 4,437.52 2,800.00 1,637.52

440.807 Zoning Office ER Workers Comp 739.28 1,400.00 -660.72

440.808 Zoning Officer Training 172.00 -172.00

440.81 Zoning Office ER Hlth/Life 5,001.07 7,000.00 -1,998.93

440.815 Planning Commission Direct Deposit Fees 33.20 -33.20

440.817 Legal Services 4,900.78 4,000.00 900.78

440.822 Advertising 219.23 176.00 43.23

440.823 Postage 70.00 -70.00

440.824 Publications/Memberships 70.00 -70.00

440.83 Communications Expenses 1,863.61 1,750.00 113.61

Total Planning Commission Expenses 68,972.92 64,527.20 4,445.72

440.82 Professional Services 100.00 100.00

440.83 Communications Expenses 1,750.00 -1,750.00

Police Dept. Grant Expenses

700.70 Police Dept. Grant Expenses

DUI Grant Expense 980.00 -980.00

Total 700.70 Police Dept. Grant Expenses 980.00 -980.00

Total Police Dept. Grant Expenses 980.00 -980.00

Police Equip. Purchase & Repair 3,000.00 3,000.00

700.16 Police Equipment/Furn. Purchase 12,807.38 10,500.00 2,307.38

700.17 Police Equipment Repair/Maint. 3,637.01 3,500.00 137.01

700.24 Police Computer Maintenance 821.76 4,900.00 -4,078.24

Total Police Equip. Purchase & Repair 20,266.15 18,900.00 1,366.15

700.45 Police UNIFORMS 3,488.67 2,100.00 1,388.67

Police Other Expenses

700.19 Police Postage Expense 475.85 1,400.00 -924.15

700.20 Police Publications 34.96 34.96

700.38 Police DR/CR System Fees (deleted) 108.20 108.20

Total 700.20 Police Publications 143.16 143.16

700.22 Police Dues 280.00 -280.00

700.303 Police Legal Fees 3,725.78 10,500.00 -6,774.22

700.309 Window Cleaning 1,236.50 1,536.00 -299.50

700.31 Police Commercial Insurance 33,006.00 63,000.00 -29,994.00

700.311 Police IT Services 3,526.74 5,336.00 -1,809.26

700.38 Police DR/CR System Fees 1,494.63 2,100.00 -605.37

700.41 Police Supplies and Materials 11,807.52 2,100.00 9,707.52

700.42 Police Advertising 1,472.24 350.00 1,122.24

700.43 Police Gas/Fuel 11,005.30 4,000.00 7,005.30



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Budget vs. Actuals: New Budget draft - FY23 P&L

July 2022 - February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   6/9

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

700.46 Police Misc. Expenses 8,627.26 1,020.00 7,607.26

Police Contractual Svc

700.308 Shredding Service 264.00 -264.00

700.310 Landscaping 464.00 -464.00

700.312 Police Dept. Building Cleaning 880.00 -880.00

700.317 Message 911 Service 232.00 -232.00

Total Police Contractual Svc 1,840.00 -1,840.00

Police Court Attorney 2,611.25 4,328.00 -1,716.75

Total Police Other Expenses 79,132.23 97,790.00 -18,657.77

700.22 Police Dues 280.00 -280.00

Police Remittance Fees 2,180.00 2,180.00

700.36 Police WV Treasurers Remittance 1,630.00 4,200.00 -2,570.00

700.37 Police Teen Court Fees 715.00 700.00 15.00

Total Police Remittance Fees 4,525.00 4,900.00 -375.00

Police Salaries & Fringe

700.031 Police Gross Payroll 306,198.70 316,976.00 -10,777.30

700.04 Police ER FICA 23,185.20 13,328.00 9,857.20

700.05 Police ER Health/Life 43,342.55 45,224.00 -1,881.45

700.06 Police ER Annuity Contrib. 16,049.89 20,000.00 -3,950.11

700.07 Police ER Workers Comp 6,406.72 6,666.64 -259.92

700.08 Police Test/Training/Physicals 2,725.40 2,725.40

700.08 Police Test/Training/Physicals (deleted) 425.00 425.00

700.10 Police Contractual Detail 4,333.28 -4,333.28

700.30 Police Direct Deposit Fees 333.28 -333.28

Total Police Salaries & Fringe 398,333.46 406,861.20 -8,527.74

Police Utilities & Rent

700.14 Police Communications 2,664.88 8,400.00 -5,735.12

700.15 Police Building Maintenance 3,500.00 -3,500.00

700.23 Police Electric 1,900.80 2,240.00 -339.20

700.23 Police Electric (deleted) 264.76 264.76

700.28 Police Water/Sewer/Trash 2,135.28 -2,135.28

Total Police Utilities & Rent 4,830.44 16,275.28 -11,444.84

Police Vehicle Expenses 33,328.00 -33,328.00

700.18 Police Vehicle Repair 4,319.00 9,328.00 -5,009.00

Total Police Vehicle Expenses 4,319.00 42,656.00 -38,337.00

Public Works Expenses

440.62 Public Works Equip./Impr. Exp 1,750.00 -1,750.00

Total Public Works Expenses 1,750.00 -1,750.00

Regional Council Dues 600.00 -600.00

Sanitation Dumping Fees

800.30 Sanitation Contractual 25,773.93 16,800.00 8,973.93



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Budget vs. Actuals: New Budget draft - FY23 P&L

July 2022 - February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   7/9

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

800.301 Landfill Fees 11,562.51 16,664.00 -5,101.49

800.31 Recycling Fee (JCSW & AVW) 9,404.17 7,700.00 1,704.17

Total 800.30 Sanitation Contractual 46,740.61 41,164.00 5,576.61

Total Sanitation Dumping Fees 46,740.61 41,164.00 5,576.61

Sanitation Equip Repair & Maint

800.15 Sanitation Equip. Repair/Maint. 666.64 -666.64

800.16 Sanitation Safety Equip/Expense 128.39 500.00 -371.61

Total Sanitation Equip Repair & Maint 128.39 1,166.64 -1,038.25

Sanitation Other Expenses 2,800.00 -2,800.00

800.18 Sanitation CDL License 112.00 266.64 -154.64

800.20 Sanitation Commercial Insurance 6,300.00 -6,300.00

800.21 Sanitation Uniforms 2,018.83 896.64 1,122.19

800.41 Sanitation Supplies & Materials 37,612.09 2,566.64 35,045.45

800.43 Sanitation Gas/Fuel 6,257.98 10,000.00 -3,742.02

800.44 Sanitation Billing Postage 2,253.71 2,666.64 -412.93

800.44 Sanitation Billing Postage (deleted) 916.80 916.80

800.48 Sanitation IT Expenses 6,666.64 -6,666.64

800.49 Garbage Truck Repay ($to repay VL for Garbage) 26,400.00 -26,400.00

800.50 Sanitation Message 911 244.96 -244.96

978.459 Health/Sanitation Equipment-GF 98,000.00 -98,000.00

Total Sanitation Other Expenses 49,171.41 156,808.16 -107,636.75

Sanitation Salaries & Fringe

800.03 Sanitation Gross Payroll 33,511.56 43,520.00 -10,008.44

800.04 Sanitation ER FICA 3,117.35 3,434.00 -316.65

800.05 Sanitation ER Health/Life 3,472.30 27,880.00 -24,407.70

800.05 Sanitation ER Health/Life (deleted) 528.55 528.55

800.06 Sanitation ER Annuity Contrib. 787.06 2,720.00 -1,932.94

800.07 Sanitation ER Workers Comp 591.36 1,020.00 -428.64

Total Sanitation Salaries & Fringe 42,008.18 78,574.00 -36,565.82

800.08 Sanitation Personnel Training 150.00 -150.00

Sanitation Vehicle Expenses

800.17 Sanitation Vehicle Repair/Exp 6,386.67 3,500.00 2,886.67

Total Sanitation Vehicle Expenses 6,386.67 3,500.00 2,886.67

Streets Maintenance & Equipment

750.15 Streets R&M 1,331.61 1,333.28 -1.67

750.16 Streets Equipment Repair 11,129.96 733.28 10,396.68

750.17 Streets Safety Equip/Expense 6,195.06 566.64 5,628.42

750.20 Street Markings 1,614.28 1,333.28 281.00

750.21 Streets Signs & Signals 733.28 -733.28

Total Streets Maintenance & Equipment 20,270.91 4,699.76 15,571.15

Streets Other Expenses 2,075.00 2,075.00



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Budget vs. Actuals: New Budget draft - FY23 P&L

July 2022 - February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   8/9

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

750.30 Streets Uniforms 2,044.48 690.00 1,354.48

750.31 Streets Commercial Insurance 8,581.47 10,500.00 -1,918.53

750.41 Streets Supplies & Materials 8,590.70 3,666.64 4,924.06

750.45 Streets Advertising 25.00 333.28 -308.28

Total Streets Other Expenses 21,316.65 15,189.92 6,126.73

Streets Salaries & Fringe

750.03 Street Wages 51,216.00 44,404.00 6,812.00

750.04 Streets ER FICA 3,907.37 5,440.00 -1,532.63

750.05 Streets ER Health/Life 11,002.33 5,780.00 5,222.33

750.06 Streets ER Annuity Contrib. 2,324.17 2,380.00 -55.83

750.07 Streets ER Workers Comp 1,626.32 1,088.00 538.32

Total Streets Salaries & Fringe 70,076.19 59,092.00 10,984.19

Streets Tree Maintenance

750.14 Streets Tree Maintenance 19,132.66 19,600.00 -467.34

Total Streets Tree Maintenance 19,132.66 19,600.00 -467.34

Streets Utilities

750.12 Streets Communications 323.21 524.96 -201.75

750.18 Streets Electric 10,632.99 16,800.00 -6,167.01

Total Streets Utilities 10,956.20 17,324.96 -6,368.76

Streets Vehicle Expenses

750.42 Streets Vehicle Repair 3,636.87 2,666.64 970.23

750.43 Streets Gas/Fuel 6,183.39 3,333.28 2,850.11

Total Streets Vehicle Expenses 9,820.26 5,999.92 3,820.34

Tobacco Warehouse Expense 54.45 54.45

903.01 Tobacco Warehouse Repairs/Maintenance 350.00 -350.00

903.05 Tobacco Warehouse Electric 60.03 140.00 -79.97

903.31 Tobacco Warehouse Flood Insurance 4,200.00 -4,200.00

Total Tobacco Warehouse Expense 114.48 4,690.00 -4,575.52

Town Elections

438.00 Elections

438.01 Election Salaries 333.28 -333.28

438.02 Election Supplies & Expense 0.00 2,600.00 -2,600.00

Total 438.00 Elections 0.00 2,933.28 -2,933.28

Total Town Elections 0.00 2,933.28 -2,933.28

Town Government Salaries/Fringe 7,124.64 -7,124.64

General Government

City Council

410.01 Council/Mayor/Recorder Salary 7,125.00 5,333.28 1,791.72

410.04 Council/Mayor/Recorder ER FICA 480.67 1,000.00 -519.33

Total City Council 7,605.67 6,333.28 1,272.39

Total General Government 7,605.67 6,333.28 1,272.39



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Budget vs. Actuals: New Budget draft - FY23 P&L

July 2022 - February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   9/9

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

Total Town Government Salaries/Fringe 7,605.67 13,457.92 -5,852.25

Visitors Center Expenses

901.01 Visitors Center Tax % Paid Out 49,605.60 49,000.00 605.60

Total Visitors Center Expenses 49,605.60 49,000.00 605.60

Total Expenses $1,205,463.55 $1,389,622.88 $ -184,159.33

NET OPERATING INCOME $290,636.63 $ -53,622.84 $344,259.47

Other Income

380C Restricted Fund Interest Coal (deleted-1) 0.00 0.00

410H Interest Income Housing (deleted-1) 0.00 0.00

Total Other Income $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Other Expenses

Reconciliation Discrepancies 680.60 680.60

Total Other Expenses $680.60 $0.00 $680.60

NET OTHER INCOME $ -680.60 $0.00 $ -680.60

NET INCOME $289,956.03 $ -53,622.84 $343,578.87

Note
These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, and no assurance is provided on 
them.



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Profit and Loss
February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   1/6

TOTAL

Income

308 Hotel Occupancy Tax 5,377.35

Court Fee Revenues -640.00

320 Fines,Fees and Court Costs

320.01 Bond Deposits 7,960.00

320.03 Fingerprints 20.00

Total 320 Fines,Fees and Court Costs 7,980.00

389 Accident Reports 20.00

Total Court Fee Revenues 7,360.00

Gaming Income-Table Games

376.00 Gaming Income-Table Games 9,209.90

Total Gaming Income-Table Games 9,209.90

License & Permit Revenue

325 Business Licenses 102.00

Total License & Permit Revenue 102.00

Other Revenues

380 Checking Interest

380.01 General Fund Interest 13,703.91

Total 380 Checking Interest 13,703.91

382 Refunds & Rebates 2,491.00

399 Miscellaneous Income

399.17 Insurance Reimb. - Library -2,499.95

Total 399 Miscellaneous Income -2,499.95

Total Other Revenues 13,694.96

Other Tax Revenues

304 Utility Tax

304.01 Town Utility Tax-Utility Co. 7,986.63

304.02 Town Utility Tax-Water/Sewer 1,934.03

Total 304 Utility Tax 9,920.66

305 Business & Occupation Tax 0.00

306 Wine/Liquor/Private Club Tax 0.00

307 Animal Control Tax 8.40

314 Muni Sales & Use Tax 98.13

328 Franchise Fee/Pole Tax 2,954.58

330 IRP Truck Fees 559.39

Total Other Tax Revenues 13,541.16



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Profit and Loss
February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   2/6

TOTAL

Parking Fee Revenue

321 Parking Tickets/includes boots 3,640.00

342 Parking Meter Revenues

342.10 Parking Meter Income 5,051.30

342.30 Parking Meter-Passport 7,317.05

Total 342 Parking Meter Revenues 12,368.35

343 Parking Permit Revenue 130.00

Total Parking Fee Revenue 16,138.35

Planning Commission Revenue

326 Building Permits 150.00

Total Planning Commission Revenue 150.00

Property Tax Revenue 50,090.00

Refuse Collections Revenue

350 Refuse Collection

350.10 Refuse Revenue-All 14,575.77

350.20 Recycling Revenue-All 3,014.49

Total 350 Refuse Collection 17,590.26

Special Recycling Revenue

350.05 Refuse Coll.- Special Pickup 80.00

Total Special Recycling Revenue 80.00

Total Refuse Collections Revenue 17,670.26

Rents Revenue

345.00 Rent-Water & Sewer Depts. 3,600.00

Total Rents Revenue 3,600.00

Video Lottery Proceeds Revenue 19.63

397.00 Racetrack Video Lottery 29,737.26

397.02 New Limited VL Terminals 568.91

Total Video Lottery Proceeds Revenue 30,325.80

Total Income $167,259.78

GROSS PROFIT $167,259.78

Expenses

440.30 City Hall Legal Fees 1,122.43

700.305 Misc. Contractual 723.37

916 Library - Building Repairs 10,359.05

Arts, Humanities, Library

906.01 A/H/L  Tax %  Paid Out 124.88

Total Arts, Humanities, Library 124.88



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Profit and Loss
February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   3/6

TOTAL

City Hall Accounting/Audit

440.21 City Hall Accounting Services 690.06

Total City Hall Accounting/Audit 690.06

City Hall Bldg/Equip Expenses

440.27 City Hall Communications 536.21

Total City Hall Bldg/Equip Expenses 536.21

City Hall Insurance

440.31 City Hall Commercial Insurance 1,348.80

Total City Hall Insurance 1,348.80

City Hall Other Expenses

440.22 City Hall Dues/Memberships 87.89

440.29 City Hall Contracted Services 1,854.53

440.411 City Hall Supplies & Materials 230.99

Total City Hall Other Expenses 2,173.41

City Hall Utilities

440.15 City Hall Electric 309.83

440.28 City Hall Water/Sewer/Trash 401.43

Total City Hall Utilities 711.26

City Hall-Employee Salary/Fring

440.03 City Hall Wages 6,292.72

440.04 City Hall ER FICA 473.81

440.051 City Hall ER Hlth/Life 1,130.40

440.06 City Hall ER Annuity Contrib. 497.35

440.07 City Hall ER Workers Comp 169.41

Total City Hall-Employee Salary/Fring 8,563.69

General Fund Donations

440.54 Shep. Public Library Donations 1,800.00

Total General Fund Donations 1,800.00

Parks Equipment & Supplies

900.41 Parks Materials & Supplies 5.30

900.58 Parks Equipment 51,500.98

Total Parks Equipment & Supplies 51,506.28

Parks Maintenance

900.31 Parks Commercial Insurance 158.68

Total Parks Maintenance 158.68



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Profit and Loss
February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   4/6

TOTAL

Parks Salaries & Fringe

900.03 Parks Gross Payroll 383.06

900.04 Parks ER FICA 29.30

900.05 Parks ER Health/Life 205.53

900.06 Parks ER Annuity Contrib. 0.00

900.07 Parks ER Workers Comp 30.80

Total Parks Salaries & Fringe 648.69

Parks Vehicle Expenses

900.43 Parks Gas/Fuel 61.31

Total Parks Vehicle Expenses 61.31

Planning Commission Expenses

440.802 Zoning Office FT Wages/Salary 5,994.37

440.804 Zoning Officer ER FICA 452.65

440.806 Zoning Office ER Annuity 596.64

440.807 Zoning Office ER Workers Comp 92.41

440.81 Zoning Office ER Hlth/Life 616.58

440.817 Legal Services 2,257.43

440.822 Advertising 74.92

Total Planning Commission Expenses 10,085.00

700.45 Police UNIFORMS 946.49

Police Other Expenses

700.303 Police Legal Fees 622.43

700.31 Police Commercial Insurance 4,125.75

700.311 Police IT Services 335.13

700.38 Police DR/CR System Fees 235.35

700.41 Police Supplies and Materials 331.67

700.43 Police Gas/Fuel 1,389.67

700.46 Police Misc. Expenses 1,676.12

Total Police Other Expenses 8,716.12

Police Remittance Fees

700.37 Police Teen Court Fees 155.00

Total Police Remittance Fees 155.00

Police Salaries & Fringe

700.031 Police Gross Payroll 37,810.65

700.04 Police ER FICA 2,864.49

700.05 Police ER Health/Life 5,343.72

700.06 Police ER Annuity Contrib. 1,841.12

700.07 Police ER Workers Comp 800.84

700.08 Police Test/Training/Physicals 1,166.00

Total Police Salaries & Fringe 49,826.82



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Profit and Loss
February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   5/6

TOTAL

Police Utilities & Rent

700.14 Police Communications 280.44

700.23 Police Electric 309.83

Total Police Utilities & Rent 590.27

Police Vehicle Expenses

700.18 Police Vehicle Repair 758.94

Total Police Vehicle Expenses 758.94

Sanitation Dumping Fees

800.30 Sanitation Contractual 1,055.60

800.301 Landfill Fees 2,132.23

800.31 Recycling Fee (JCSW & AVW) 1,251.99

Total 800.30 Sanitation Contractual 4,439.82

Total Sanitation Dumping Fees 4,439.82

Sanitation Other Expenses

800.21 Sanitation Uniforms 233.84

800.41 Sanitation Supplies & Materials 412.68

800.43 Sanitation Gas/Fuel 664.62

800.44 Sanitation Billing Postage 350.50

Total Sanitation Other Expenses 1,661.64

Sanitation Salaries & Fringe

800.03 Sanitation Gross Payroll 4,436.64

800.04 Sanitation ER FICA 339.30

800.05 Sanitation ER Health/Life 493.27

800.06 Sanitation ER Annuity Contrib. 170.64

800.07 Sanitation ER Workers Comp 73.92

Total Sanitation Salaries & Fringe 5,513.77

Sanitation Vehicle Expenses

800.17 Sanitation Vehicle Repair/Exp 156.12

Total Sanitation Vehicle Expenses 156.12

Streets Maintenance & Equipment

750.15 Streets R&M 146.20

750.17 Streets Safety Equip/Expense 463.00

Total Streets Maintenance & Equipment 609.20

Streets Other Expenses

750.30 Streets Uniforms 260.64

750.31 Streets Commercial Insurance 1,047.30

750.41 Streets Supplies & Materials 928.62

Total Streets Other Expenses 2,236.56



Corporation of Shepherdstown
Profit and Loss
February 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, March 24, 2023 09:51 AM GMT-04:00   6/6

TOTAL

Streets Salaries & Fringe

750.03 Street Wages 4,716.02

750.04 Streets ER FICA 360.65

750.05 Streets ER Health/Life 1,356.48

750.06 Streets ER Annuity Contrib. 128.92

750.07 Streets ER Workers Comp 203.29

Total Streets Salaries & Fringe 6,765.36

Streets Vehicle Expenses

750.42 Streets Vehicle Repair 139.70

750.43 Streets Gas/Fuel 450.77

Total Streets Vehicle Expenses 590.47

Tobacco Warehouse Expense

903.05 Tobacco Warehouse Electric 14.86

Total Tobacco Warehouse Expense 14.86

Total Expenses $173,594.56

NET OPERATING INCOME $ -6,334.78

Other Expenses

Reconciliation Discrepancies 582.53

Total Other Expenses $582.53

NET OTHER INCOME $ -582.53

NET INCOME $ -6,917.31

Note
These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement, and no assurance is provided on 
them.













AN ORDINANCE RE-ENACTING AND FURTHER CLARIFYING 
SECTION 9-207 OF CHAPTER 2 OF TITLE 9 OF THE 

CODE OF SHEPHERDSTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA, 
TO PROHIBIT DRIVEWAYS THAT CROSS PUBLIC SIDEWALKS 

 
 

THE SHEPHERDSTOWN TOWN COUNCIL ORDAINS: 
 

Chapter 2 of Title 9 of the Town Code is hereby amended and further clarified by 
amending and re-enacting Section 9-207, entitled "Off-street parking requirements", to prohibit 
driveways that cross public sidewalks; accordingly, there is amended and re-enacted Section 9- 
207 of Chapter 2 of Title 9 to read as follows: 

 
Section 9-207 Off-street parking requirements. 

 
Parking space or spaces surfaced with asphalt, concrete or other stabilized material 

such as crusher-run and three (3) inches of stone shall be provided on any lot on which any of the 
following uses currently exist or are hereafter established. Each space shall have access to an alley. 
Access across a public sidewalk is prohibited. For purposes of computing, each space will be not 
less than nine (9) feet wide nor twenty (20) feet long. 

 
I. Minimum requirements for specific uses: 

 
(a) For boardinghouses, one (1) space on the lot for each lodging unit in the 

dwelling. 
 

(b) For churches erected on new sites, one parking space on the lot for each ten 
(10) seats in the main auditorium, but existing churches and additions to or 
enlargements of churches existing at the time of passage of this title shall be 
exempt from this requirement. 

 
(c) For places of public assembly, including auditoriums and theatres, one space 

for each seven (7) seats provided. 
 

(d) For all schools, except high schools, two (2) spaces for each classroom; for 
high schools ten (10) spaces for each classroom. 

 
(e) For institutions, clubs, lodges and other public and semi-public buildings, 

five (5) spaces for each one thousand (1,000) square feet of floor area. 
 

(f) For commercial and residential uses located on the same lot in the Residential 
Commercial District, one space for each dwelling unit and one space for each 
two hundred (200) square feet of commercial floor area, with a minimum of 
two (2) spaces required. 

 
(g) For commercial uses, except as specified in Section 9-207 I (f), one (1) space 

for each three hundred (300) square feet of floor area and one (1) space for 
each two (2) employees. 

 
II. General rules and exceptions: 



(a) In the RC and C Districts, parking space may be provided on a separate lot 
if within three hundred (300) feet of the building served, and two (2) or more 
owners may join together in the provision of this parking space. 

 
(b) No parking space may be located in a front or side yard. This does not 

prohibit parking in an existing driveway. 
 

(c) Parking spaces may be provided in side and rear yards in the Commercial 
District but are limited to read yards in Residential Districts. 

 
(d) Parking space for any use specifically permitted in an R District may be 

provided on a lot adjoining that use. 
 
 

First Reading: March 14, 2023 

Second Reading:  

Adopted:  

 

  
Mayor 

 
 
 

  
    Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15125689.2 





















Special Town Council Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, March 29, 2023  
Town Hall 

104 North King Street 

Also being streamed on the town’s Facebook page “Shepherdstown, West 
Virginia” 

DRAFT 

 

Present:  Mayor Jim Auxer, Lori Robertson (Recorder), Jim Ford, Chris 
Stroech, Jenny Haynes, Cheryl Roberts, and Marty Amerikaner. 

Absent:  None 

Staff:  Town Clerk Amy Boyd, Town Administrator Stephanie Grove, and 
Public Works Director Frank Welch 

Visitors:  Meredith Wait, Sue Kemnitzer, Elise Baach, Annette Gavin-
Bates, Lois Turco, Eric Lewis, Jim Ford, Mark Kohut, Harriett Pearson, Jan 
Hafer, Mark Purdy, Christian Asam, Steve Pearson, Becky Phipps, Carol 
Asam, Marianne Alexander, and Phillip Webber. 

Agenda: 

1.        Call meeting to order 
Call the meeting to order by Mayor Auxer at 5:30 p.m. 

           The Mayor introduced Stephanie Grove as our new Town 
Administrator. 

2.        Review of applications for the Market House  

           Mayor - we have three applicants giving each 20 minutes to speak.  

       The first applicant is via phone call from Florida - Michelle Matro. 



           M. Matro - has a for profit business called United Businesses.  Has 
been looking for the right place to live, visited Shepherdstown and loved it. 
The goal is to unite businesses. 

           L. Rampy - how do you make your money? 

           M. Metro - it is member based -products and services.  Products that 
relate to environmental and social issues.  Retail and service (educational 
and consulting). The venture will need to make money. Services offered and 
myself and for business owners (job training). 

           C. Stroech - have you reached out to the local businesses to try to 
gauge their interest regarding their needs? And you state you need a rent 
offset? Starting Date? 

          M. Metro - have not reached out - whatever they need, she will 
provide it.  Would need a rent offset.  Not sure for how long - it would help 
out a lot. Starting date depends on the ability to find housing.  May 1st is 
preferred. 

          C. Roberts - what did you notice when you visited here in regards to 
diversity? Any interaction with people? 

          M. Metro - it felt inviting, loved the artwork.  It was early in the day 
so not much. 

         M. Amerikaner - you have to create a business?  What about 
occupancy?  What will happen inside the Market House? 

         M. Matro - will create a new business model specific to 
Shepherdstown.  Again, need to find housing first.  Have a public bathroom, 
retail, business display, and a community board. 

         J. Haynes - selling merchandise? 

        M. Matro - branded United Business merchandise reflecting 
environmental and social needs, and local art hung to be sold. 

 

        Second applicant - Marianne Alexander - Shepherdstown Connects 



       Represents many groups - non-profits working together, at least 10 
groups involved..  They are concerned that there is no community calendar.  
Wants to see the Market House as in information hub.  Shepherd University 
is not being showcased enough.  Would like to bring some of the elements of 
the old visitor’s center.  Some of the involved groups are CATF, SAIL, 
Boyd Center, Historic Shepherdstown, Potomac Valley Audubon Society, 
Shepherdstown Community Club, Shepherdstown Shares, Speak Story 
Series, SU Dean of Arts, Lifelong Learning, etc.  We would like to partner 
with the CVB. 

       C. Stroech - Shepherdstown Connects is not a non-profit?  How would 
you get all of these groups organized in one spot? 

       M. Alexander - no, we are an alliance that is comprised of 501(C)3’s.  
Each group will bring in what they do best in that space.  We don’t have the 
resources to bring the Market House up to snuff. 

       J. Haynes - likes the partnership idea with CVB. 

      M. Alexander - we do not want to put the community groups upstairs  - 
we don’t want to be in the attic. 

      M. Amerikaner - are you the public face for this alliance?  What is your 
funding source? 

      M. Alexander - yes, and we need to still coordinate all of it.  No, not 
saying that the alliance would be paying rent.  We would be relying 
volunteers to promote a local flavor of Shepherdstown.  Shepherdstown 
Shares has an excess of volunteers. 

      L. Rampy - what size space are you looking for?   

     M. Alexander - we haven’t worked that out yet.  We want to be 
ambassadors representing Shepherdstown. 

 

     Third applicant - Annette Gavin-Bates - Jefferson County Convention & 
Visitors Bureau (JCCVB or CVB) 



     The CVB is a 501(C)3 non-profit.  We want to create a welcome center 
and community space in the Market House. (She handed out a booklet 
highlighting Shepherdstown). We are a destination marketing organization 
and welcome center. Visitors need knowledgable insight and our trained 
ambassadors can do that. We will support the town, businesses, events, 
culture, and the arts. We bring many fiscal resources to the table providing 
steady funding.  There is a 23 member board, 7 are from Shepherdstown. 
There is a paid professional staff.  If approved, we will secure funding for 
repairs and maintenance. Michael Mills has been contacted and he has 
offered some pro-bono services. We will create a welcome center section for 
Shepherdstown. Trained ambassadors will welcome visitors. We see the 
second floor as a flex-space for rotating artists, etc.  We see ourselves as 
custodians of Shepherdstown’s history. 

     Mayor - the CVB is funded by the hotel/motel tax. 

    E. Lewis - is an accountant for the Bavarian Inn.  The occupancy tax is 
paid by guests at the BI.  There is a  6% tax that is held in trust and remitted 
to a government agency. The BI annexed 1/2 of its property which allowed 
the town to collect the 1% tax.  In 2022, 1% equated to $72K.  If the CVB 
comes to Shepherdstown, the town will get the whole amount of hotel/motel 
tax whereas before they got half.  The whole amount is broken down with 
the town giving the CVB 50% with the other 50% going to Shepherdstown 
Parks & Rec.  Of the P&R’s share, 20% of that is available to P&R 
immediately with the other 30% allowed to be used within the parameters of 
the state code. Those parameters include arts, historic sites and 
beautification sites. 

    C. Stroech - looking at the spreadsheet, it looks like our take is doubled? 

    E. Lewis - yes, the town gets the county’s piece. 

    M. Amerikaner - worries that enough focus won’t be on Shepherdstown. 
Days open? Funding sources? 

    A. Gavin-Bates - if we know about the happenings in Shepherdstown, we 
will promote/market them.  Will promote Shepherdstown merchandise.  5-7 
days a week. Funding - private, public, and grants. 



    L. Rampy - thoughts on the collaboration idea?  Regarding ambassadors, 
how do you collect feedback on these people?  Do you encourage a sign in 
for visitors? Lease length? 

    A. Gavin-Bates - definitely want to entertain this idea.  The ADA 
bathroom will take a bit of doing and we are also thinking about a lift to get 
to the second floor. Comment directed to M. Alexander - please take on the 
community calendar!  Very confident in the ambassadors.  We do encourage 
a sign in to gather emails  and to see where they are coming from. This is a 
big investment for us, so we’d like to see a 10-20 year lease due to the 
upfront costs. 

     C. Roberts - are you looking to use the Shepherdstown Connects 
volunteers to run it? 

     A. Gavin-Bates - no, we want to use our own paid staff.  We would like 
to get to the point of an area in the MH where Connects volunteers can help. 

     C. Stroech - in regards to what our survey showed us as to what people 
want to see inside the MH like accessible bathrooms, library pick-up/drop-
off, and computer availability for those in need, do you see any issues? 

      A. Gavin-Bates - no, we can absolutely work through it.  We still need to 
look at the building for the final usable space. 

      C. Asam - is concerned about the timeline, that it will take long.  This is 
an important structure. 

      Mayor - we are trying to move forward as quickly as possible.  The lease 
will be a public hearing. 

 

      L. Rampy - move to go into Executive Session at 6:53 p.m. pursuant 
to 6-9A-4(b)(2)(A).  Second by M. Amerikaner.  No objections noted. 

      Everyone left the room except council and the town administrator . 



      J. Haynes - move to come out of Executive Session at 7:20 p.m. 
pursuant to 6-9A-4(b)(2)(A).  Second by C. Roberts.  No objections 
noted. 

      All visitors had gone. 

 

      L. Robertson - move to approve the CVB application and to direct 
the Mayor and legal counsel to prepare and negotiate the lease.  Second 
by C. Stroech.  No objections noted. 

      L. Robertson – move to adjourn at 7:22 p.m.  Second by J. Haynes.   
No objections noted. 

 

Draft Minutes respectfully submitted by L. Robertson, Recorder for 
the Corporation of Shepherdstown. 

 

     

 









Shepherdstown Town Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, March 14, 2023 

Town Hall 

104 North King Street 

6:30 p.m. 

Mask Wearing is Optional 

Also being streamed on the town’s Facebook page “Shepherdstown, 
West Virginia” 

DRAFT 

 

 

 

Present:   Jim Auxer (Mayor), Lori Robertson (Recorder), Chris Stroech, 
Jenny Haynes, Leah Rampy, Cheryl Roberts, and Marty Amerikaner via 
phone call. 
 

Absent:  None 

 

Staff:  Town Clerk Amy Boyd, Director of Public Works Frank Welch, 
Bookkeeper Bev Bennett, and Chief of Police Mike King. 
 

Visitors: John Meeker, Rachel Meads, Adam Thomas, Paul Marshall, Paul 
Butler, John Loeffler, and Steve Pearson. 
 

 

Agenda Items 1 and 2-Call to order/approval of Town Council Minutes 
(vote required): 

      

Call to order by Mayor Auxer at 6:31 pm. 



Approval of the Town Council Meeting Draft Minutes of February 14, 2023.   

C. Roberts  - move to approve Town Council Draft Minutes of February 
14, 2023.  Second by L. Rampy.  No objections noted. 
 

 

Agenda Item 3 – Public Comment Period:  

 • Persons who have registered to address Town Council. 

         - P. Marshall - Jefferson County Parks & Rec - are doing a fireworks 
display at the AMP and are looking for revenue to help out with this - other 
community are helping.  AMP is a free concert series (7 to 9 concerts) with a 
wide variety of music Thursday’s at 7 p.m.  The rain date is the following 
day. 

          Mayor - he will put it on the Finance Committee agenda to address. 
 

         - Chief King showed the new police patch they would like to have on 
their uniforms. 

           C. Roberts  - move to approve the patch.  Second by J. Haynes. 

           Discussion -  

           P. Butler - address the police patch - the thin blue line on the patch is 
associated with hate groups. 

           L. Rampy - the question is what is the intent and what is the 
perception?  Should have a look at both. 

          C. Stroech - we should get the word out, assess, and address this at the 
next meeting. 

          All opposed the motion.  So Moved. 
 

         C. Stroech - move to table until we can solicit feedback.  Second by 
C. Roberts.  No objections noted. 
 



 

Agenda Item 4 - Visitors: 

Visitor’s comments, if any, are logged in under the specific agenda items. 
 

a.  Shepherdstown Street Fest WV, Inc  – John Meeker - June 24, 
2023 

     J. Meeker - the time frame and the footprint is the same.  Will have fewer 
performer with longer sets.  Last year’s charities received $5K each.  They 
were Shepherdstown Shares and Eastern Panhandle Empowerment Center.  
This year will be the Shepherdstown Fire Department with the second 
charity to be determined.  There will be a beer garden behind the Market 
House. 

L. Robertson - move to approve Shepherdstown Street Fest - June 24, 
2023 waiving the noise and open container ordinances.  Second by C. 
Robert.  No objections noted. 
 

b.  Shepherdstown Morris - May Day - Joanie Blanton - April 29, 2023 

     R. Meads - Saturday, April 29.  No parade this year.  Will be traditional 
music and dancing on McMurran Lawn.  No street closures, but we need 2 
parking spaces on King St. marked off.  Time for event is 12:00 - 1:30 p.m. 

C. Roberts – move to approve Shepherdstown Morris - May Day June 
29, 2023.  Second by C. Stroech.  No objections noted. 
 

c.  Relay for Life - April 14, 2023 

     R. Meads - Time is 6 p.m. - 6 a.m. on the West Campus of Shepherd 
University.  There will be musicians and an MC, so it may get a little loud.  

  No vote needed. 
 

  

 



 

Agenda Item 5  – Public Hearings:   
 

a.  Second Reading Of An Ordinance Authorizing Amendments to 
And Re-adoption Of The Tariff For All Users Of The Sewer System 
Of The Corporation Of Shepherdstown. 

L. Robertson – move to approve the Second Reading Of An Ordinance 
Authorizing Amendments to And Re-adoption Of The Tariff For All 
Users Of The Sewer System Of The Corporation Of Shepherdstown.  
Second by J. Haynes.  No objections noted. 
 

B.  First Reading Of An Ordinance Re-Enacting and Further Clarifying 
Section 9-207 of Chapter 2 Of Title 9 Of The Code of Shepherdstown, West 
Virginia, To Prohibit Driveways That Cross Public Sidewalks.   

C. Stroech - First Reading Of An Ordinance Re-Enacting and Further 
Clarifying Section 9-207 of Chapter 2 Of Title 9 Of The Code of 
Shepherdstown, West Virginia, To Prohibit Driveways That Cross 
Public Sidewalks.  Second by L. Rampy.  No objections noted. 
 

 

Agenda Item 6 – Unfinished Business:  

a.       Market House – F. Welch - the 1st floor heat is now repaired 
(insurance paid out $5K for it) and the floor and walls are all dried 
out.  The  2nd floor needs to be torn out and replaced - the insurance 
quote is $5900.  Insurance will pay to have the floor cleaned & buffed 
and the carpet cleaned.  We are getting a lot from the insurance 
company.  We will still need heat on the 2nd floor via insurance.  Still 
need a decision on the shelving and a few other items. 

          C. Stroech - as inspectors/contractors look at the systems, we will 
need to get a handle on it before a tenant moves in.  A comprehensive update 
will be needed. 

          F. Welch - insurance won’t cover some parts. 



 

 

b.       Town Administrator Update –  

          The resume will be sent to the council prior to the interview 
tomorrow.  Interview is set for March 21st at 5:00 p.m. at Town Hall. 
 

 

Agenda Item 7 – Old Business: 

 

       

 Agenda Item 8 – New Business:   

A.  2023-2024 General Fund Budget Levy Estimate 

Mayor - this is the town budget estimate that the department 
heads from the Corporation, Public Works, and Police 
Department formulated from individual department needs.  It is 
broken down into individual categories for each department and 
must be presented to the State by March 27, 2023. 

C. Stroech - have the issues/worksheets from the session from 
Dana been resolved?  It would also be helpful to get the financials 
a few weeks in advance to the council members. 

A. Boyd - yes, and we can do that. 

L. Rampy - does the finance committee look at these before they 
come to council?  The year-to-date worksheet looks better.  There 
are big differences from one year to another regarding city hall 
expenditures.  

Mayor - we can go through the finance committee in the future. 

A. Boyd - the town administrator costs are included, that’s the 
reason why. 



B. Bennett - explained the restricted funds for capital projects.  
Unassigned heading - we had to show it in the budget, as required 
by the state, which is a rollover and not considered revenue. 

L. Robertson - move to approve the 2023-2024 General Fund 
Budget Levy Estimate.  Second by C. Roberts.  No objections 
noted. 
 

 Agenda Item 9 – Reports of Committees: 

 

A.  Finance Committee: 

      1.  No meeting in March 2023    

      2.  Recommendations: None 

      3.  Review and approval of Corporation Financials 

           L. Rampy - a question regarding the salaries and fringe money 
for a future conversations 

          F. Welch - public works is down an employee. 

          L. Robertson - move to approve the Corporation Financials 
with corrections for July 2022-January 2023.  Second by L. 
Rampy.  No objections noted. 

 

B.  Parking Committee: 

        1.  No meeting in March 2023   

        2.  Recommendations: None 

 

C.   Police Committee: 

1. Meeting minutes of February 2023 - not available 

              2. Recommendations: None 

             3.  New police patches -  see comments above 



 

D.   Parks and Recreation Committee: 

       1.  No Meeting in February 2023   

       2.  Recommendations:  None 

 

E.   Public Works Committee: 

       1.  Meeting minutes of March 3, 2023 – not available    

       2.  Recommendations:  None 

       3.  Stormwater Management Grant 

       Mayor - we have applied for this grant that is a study for 
stormwater management.  We have concerns in different parts of town 
due to the increasing severity of storms.  The grant is $25K with a 
match of $2500.00.  A special thanks goes out to Andy Beall, Zoning 
Officer, for pursuing this opportunity. 

        L. Rampy - move to approve the grant and match up to 
$2500 as recommended by the Public Works Committee.  Second 
by C. Roberts.  No objections noted. 

 

F.    Path Advisory Committee 

       1.  No meeting March 2023 

       2.  Recommendations:  None 

 

G.   Grants Committee 

        1.  Meeting minutes of January 2023 – not available  

        2.  Recommendations:  None 

 

H.   Age Friendly Committee  

        1.  No meeting minutes in February 2023 



        2.  Recommendations: None 

 

I.    Personnel Committee 

      1.  No meeting in February 2023 

      2.  Recommendations: None 

 

 

Agenda item 10 – Report of Commissions, Authority and Boards: 

 

 

A.   Historic Landmarks Commission: 

       1.  Meeting minutes of January 2023 – not available    

       2.  Recommendations:  None 

 

B.   Planning Commission: 

       1.  Meeting minutes of January 2023 – not available    

        2. Recommendations: None 

 

C.   Tree Commission 

       1.  No Meeting in February 2023  

       2.  Recommendations:  None 

 

D.   Water and Sanitary Board: 

       1.  Meeting minutes of February 23, 2023   

       2.  Recommendations:  None 

 

E.   Board of Appeals 



       1.  None scheduled. 
 

Agenda Item 11 - Mayor’s Report: 

*. Railroad derailment issue - all mayors will address this as one 
entity.  Thanks to Mayor Vaughn for authorizing a letter to CSX and 
Norfolk Southern and to Senators Capito and Manchin. 

*  The bike path is moving forward.  Another grant has been applied 
for in the amount of $678,830.63 and we are trying to get the $120K 
match covered by the state. 

*  Shepherd University did a great job of cleaning up the alleys. 

*  The Police Committee interviewed two candidates, neither of 
whom were chosen. 

 

 

L. Robertson – move to adjourn at 7:43 p.m. Second by C. Stroech.  No 
objections noted. 
 

Draft Minutes respectfully submitted by L. Robertson, Recorder for the 
Corporation of Shepherdstown. 
 


	2023 April Town Council  Agenda
	3.   Public Comment Period
	9. Reports of Committees
	A. Finance Committee
	C. Police Committee
	D. Public Works Committee
	E. Parks and Recreation Committee
	A. Tree Commission
	B.  Water and Sanitary Board
	C. Historic Landmarks Commission

	2023-03-23 Water & Sewer Board minutes (2)
	American Foundation for Suicide Prevention
	Coal Severance February 2023
	Corporation BalanceSheet February 2023
	Corporation BudgetvsActualsNewBudgetdraft-FY23PL (2)
	Corporation ProfitandLoss February 2023
	Geocaching Earthcache
	New Police Patch
	REVISED_ 9-207 Off street parking
	Rotary Club of Shepherdstown 4th of July Parade
	Special TC meeting Mar 29 23
	SU Law Enforcement Mutual Assistance Agreement
	TC March 14 2023 (002)



